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GFO-19-309 Pre-Application Workshop



Housekeeping

• Zoom recording
• Muting on Zoom
• Questions 
• Updates on solicitation documents including this 
presentation will be posted at the Grant Funding 
Opportunity’s webpage: 
https://www.energy.ca.gov/solicitations/2020-
09/gfo-19-309-california-flexible-load-research-
and-deployment-hub
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https://www.energy.ca.gov/solicitations/2020-09/gfo-19-309-california-flexible-load-research-and-deployment-hub


Agenda
Time Item
2:00 pm Welcome and Introduction
2:05 pm Solicitation Background

• EPIC Research Program
• Purpose of Solicitation
• Available Funding

2:25 pm Application Requirements
• Project Requirements
• Attachments
• Submission Process

3:00 pm Q&As
4:00 pm Adjourn
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Commitment to Diversity
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• The Energy Commission adopted a resolution strengthening its commitment to 
diversity in our funding programs. The Energy Commission continues to 
encourage disadvantaged and underrepresented  businesses and communities 
to engage in and benefit from our many programs.

• To meet this commitment, Energy Commission staff conducts outreach efforts 
and activities to:

• Engage with disadvantaged and underrepresented groups throughout the 
state.

• Notify potential new applicants about the Energy Commission’s funding 
opportunities.

• Assist applicants in understanding how to apply for funding from the Energy 
Commission’s programs.

• Survey participants to measure progress in diversity outreach efforts.



Connect With Us
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Find Partners on 
EmpowerInnovation.net
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Empower Innovation strives to accelerate your clean tech journey 
with easy access to funding opportunities from the Energy Commission 
and other funding providers, curated resources and events, and 
connections to people and organizations. 

FIND A PARTNER
Announce your interest in a funding 
opportunity and message other
potential project partners.

RESOURCES & TOOLS
Browse the collection of resources including 
Resource Libraries, Funding Sources, Tools,
and Databases. 

To connect with others for this GFO please go to this link:
https://www.empowerinnovation.net/en/custom/funding/view/4108

https://www.empowerinnovation.net/en/custom/funding/view/4108


EmpowerInnovation.net
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EmpowerInnovation.net
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Please direct questions for the Empower 
Innovation platform to:

https://www.empowerinnovation.net/en/con
tact_us

https://www.empowerinnovation.net/en/contact_us


Research Program Background
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• The Electric Program Investment Charge (EPIC) Program is an 
electricity ratepayer surcharge established by the California 
Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) in December 2011

• The purpose of the EPIC program is to benefit the ratepayers of 
the three investor-owned utilities (IOUs)

• The EPIC program funds clean energy technology projects that 
promote greater electricity reliability, lower costs, and increased 
safety 
oApplied research and development (ARD) 
oTechnology demonstration and deployment (TDD) 
oMarket facilitation (MF)



Policy Drivers
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• SB 32: reduction of GHG emission to 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030
• SB 100: ensure that California’s transition to a zero-carbon electric system does 

not cause or contribute to greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) increases.
• SB 350: California’s Renewable Portfolio Standard and Energy Efficiency for 

End-Use Customers
• 2019 California Energy Efficiency Action Plan: expands on the Existing 

Buildings Energy Action Plan and includes topics related to existing buildings’ 
energy efficiency, low-income barriers to energy efficiency, and doubling energy 
efficiency by 2030.

• Load Management Standards: encourages demand flexibility of the energy 
system – minimizing cost, improving reliability and promoting renewable energy 
resources. https://www.energy.ca.gov/proceedings/energy-commission-
proceedings/2020-load-management-rulemaking

https://www.energy.ca.gov/proceedings/energy-commission-proceedings/2020-load-management-rulemaking


Demand Flexibility Issues
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• Increasing need for demand flexibility as more Californians electrifies 
and decarbonizes

• Lack of advanced flexible and grid-integrated energy efficiency and 
distributed energy resources

• Existing DR participation is primarily focused on emergency peak 
load reduction (shed), therefore incentives for flexible response that 
provides grid support (shape, shift, shimmy) are limited.

• Technology solutions development has not been focused and 
standardized due to the limited scope of existing incentives and the 
unclear and inconsistent value proposition for end users (and 
manufacturers)

• DR program participation is low
• Available technologies lack interoperability



Purpose of Solicitation
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• Fund and establish a load flexibility and deployment research Hub 
consisting of a team of multidisciplinary experts from multiple sectors to 
conduct applied research and technology demonstration projects to 
advance innovative electricity demand flexibility technologies and 
strategies.

• The intention of this solicitation is that the research projects will result in 
technology solutions that increase building energy efficiency and 
demand flexibility, reduce dependence on fossil fuels, enhance grid 
stability, and/or increase grid reliability to help California meet its 
electrification and decarbonization goals.

• Applied Research and Development projects should focus on technologies with a 
current Technology Readiness Level (TRL) between 3 and 5.

• Technology Demonstration and Deployment projects should focus on technologies 
with a current TRL between 6 and 8.

• The goal is to move these TRLs up by at least two levels by the end of the project.



Objectives of the Solicitation
• The goals of the Hub are to achieve the following 

objectives:
oDevelop advanced signal-responsive and interoperable flexible 

technology solutions
oDevelop integrated and scalable flexible technologies
oFacilitate aggregation of large numbers of small loads
oDocument performance and costs of those technologies to 

provide a clear value proposition
oPrioritize current and anticipated grid needs, design solutions, and 

identify a suite of research projects to serve those grid needs
o Identify technological and strategic pathways to effectively 

address emerging research questions in a dynamic pricing and 
flexible demand technology environment

oShare technical knowledge developed through Hub activities to 
accelerate standardization and adoption
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EPIC and Match Funding
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EPIC Funding Amount: one (1) award up to $16,000,000 
($12,000,000 minimum award)

• $7M Applied Research and Development
• $9M Technology Demonstration and Deployment

Match Funding:
• A minimum of $1,800,000 match funding is required.
• Applicants that provide more than $1,800,000 match funding may 

receive additional points during the scoring phase.
• Match funding contributors must submit match funding 

commitment letters that meet the requirements of Attachment 10. 
Failure to do so may disqualify the match funding commitment 
from consideration.

• Refer to Section I.K. in the Solicitation Manual for more details on 
match funding.



Requirements: Workplans
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• Must include a detailed Year 1 workplan and framework for 
annual updates for Years 2-4 in the Project Narrative. 

• Must include technical tasks in the Scope of Work consistent 
with the workplans.

• Workplans will describe demand flexibility projects and 
strategy pathways in the Technical Approach of the 
Project Narrative and in the Scope of Work.

• Workplans must include proposed spending trajectories. 
See Table 1 in Section I.C of the Solicitation Manual for 
workplan spending limits.



Requirements: Workplan Year 1
• The Project Narrative and Scope of Work will include, but not limited to, 

the following Workplan Year 1 requirements:
• Describe the proposed research projects and activities the Hub will begin 

conducting in the first year of the agreement.
• Identify the specific signal-responsive and demand flexible 

technologies to be evaluated, developed, or deployed.
• Technologies should be compatible with and make use of the data 

resulting from the Load Management Standards
• Articulate the underlying assumptions, logic models, and program 

theories showing how the projects are intended to accomplish the Hub 
goals and objectives.

• Describe how the Hub will determine the research and development 
pathways for the next research phases via detailed evaluation criteria 
and performance metrics.

• See complete list of requirements in Section I.C of the Solicitation Manual.
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Requirements: Workplan Updates 
Years 2-4

• Include in the Project Narrative and Scope of Work descriptions 
including, but not limited to, the following research activities:
• Identify, analyze, and discuss demand flexibility technology trends 

and utilize that analysis in developing workplan activities for years 2-4.
• Build on existing analyses of likely electrification and demand flexibility 

scenarios for the purpose of anticipating and avoiding or mitigating 
adverse impacts on low income and/or disadvantaged communities.

• Include a research plan to build capacity in underserved 
communities through technology innovation and targeted deployment. 

• Describe how previous year(s) demonstration and deployment projects 
will continue and additional demonstration projects added that will 
successfully conclude with clearly identified technology pathways to 
market adoption and benefits to IOU ratepayers.
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Project Narrative 
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Include the following in the Project Narrative (Attachment 3)
Technical Approach
• Describe the vision associated with the development of the CalFlexHub and with 

meeting the objectives identified in Section I, Purpose of Solicitation, and covering the 
research described in Sections I.A and I.C.

• Describe how research and deployment of different demand flexibility technologies and 
strategies will be prioritized, selected, and directed during the project term.

• Describe how the proposed Hub research projects will achieve that purpose by 
addressing the topic areas in Section I.C:

• Grid Impacts
• Document and identify opportunities to reduce costs
• Customer Acceptance and Adoption
• Equity and Benefits to Disadvantaged and Low-income Communities

• Describe detailed Year 1 workplan and framework for annual updates to Years 2-4 
workplans.

• Please see Section I.C. for additional required responses for the Project Narrative



Project Narrative 
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Include the following in the Project Narrative (Attachment 3)
Team Qualifications, Capabilities, and Resources
• Describe the qualifications of the leadership team
• Propose a core multi-disciplinary team of subject matter experts with the following 

expertise:
• Next-generation heating, ventilation, and air conditioning technologies
• Advanced water heating technologies
• Plug load control strategies
• Demand response and dynamic rate design
• Renewable energy generation (local and utility-scale)
• Energy storage (thermal and electric)
• Demand flexibility technologies and strategies
• DER monitoring, controls, and aggregation
• Economic, technology, and policy trend analyses (including customer and system 

load shapes)
• Please see Section I.C. for additional required responses for the Project Narrative



Eligible Applicants
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• This is an open solicitation for public and private entities.
• Applicants must accept the EPIC terms and conditions.
oStandard, UC, and DOE T&Cs available online: 
https://www.energy.ca.gov/funding-
opportunities/funding-resources

• Applicants are required to register with the California 
Secretary of State and be in good standing to enter into an 
agreement with the Energy Commission: 
http://www.sos.ca.gov

https://www.energy.ca.gov/funding-opportunities/funding-resources
http://www.sos.ca.gov/


Application Requirements
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Each Applicant must complete and include 
the following:
1. Application Form (.pdf) 7. Budget (.xlsx)

2. Executive Summary (.docx) 8. CEQA Compliance Form (.docx)

3. Project Narrative (.docx) 9. References and Work Product Form (.docx, 
.pdf)

4. Project Team (.docx, .pdf) 10. Commitment and Support Letters (.pdf)

5. Scope of Work (.docx) 12. Applicant Declaration (.docx)

6. Project Schedule (.xlsx)

* Note: Contact List Attachment is no longer needed



Project Narrative (Attachment 3)
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This is your opportunity to explain the entirety of the project.
• The narrative should explain:

oWhy is your project necessary and important to California?
oWhat is your project approach and how will each major task be 

implemented?
oHow will the project be completed in the term proposed
oHow will the project outcomes benefit electric ratepayers?
oAddress the requirements as described in Section I.C. Some of 

these requirements were discussed previously.
• Respond to the scoring criteria described in Section IV.F and the 

questions in Section I.C of the Solicitation Manual.



Scope of Work (Attachment 5)
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• Tell us exactly what you are proposing to do in your project.
• Identify what will be delivered to the Energy Commission.
• Be sure to include in the technical tasks:

oAt least one product deliverable per task.
oAddress requirements in Section I.C. under Project Focus.

• Must include description of multiple research and deployment pathways 
and the criteria to be used to select which pathway(s) will be implemented 
under the agreement based on research findings, feedback from the Technical 
Advisory Committee and Commission Agreement Manager, and/or other 
identified factors.

• Include the Work Plans for Year 1 and Years 2-4 as discussed in Section I.C.
• Be sure to include in the Project Schedule (Attachment 6):

oProduct deliverables that correspond with the Scope of Work.
oRealistic dates on when product deliverables can be completed.

• Please read new Subtask 1.12 Project Performance Metrics and Technology 
Transfer Task



Budget (Attachment 7)
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• Identify how the Energy Commission funds and match funds will be 
spent to complete the project

• Subcontractors receiving $100,000 or more Energy Commission 
funds must complete a separate budget workbook.

• Ensure that all rates provided are maximum rates for the entire 
project term. 

• Travel Restrictions: 
oCEC funds should be limited to lodging and any form of 

transportation (e.g., airfare, rental car, public transit, parking, 
mileage). 

oIf an applicant plans to travel to conferences, including 
registration fees, they must use match funds.



Commitment and Support Letter 
Forms (Attachment 10)
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• Follow guidelines provided for commitment and support letters.
oCommitment letters are required for entities or individuals that are committing 

match funding, testing/demonstration sites, including the Prime.
oSupport letters describe a project stakeholder’s interest or involvement in the 

project.
• Applicants must submit match funding letters with a total dollar amount of at 

least $1,800,000.
• All applicants must submit at least one support letter. 
• Applicants with a test/demonstration site must submit commitment letters.
• Match funding must be supported by a match fund commitment letter.
• Any project partners that will make contributions to the project (other than match 

and sites) must submit a commitment letter.
• Limit to two pages per letter, excluding the cover page.



Project Performance Metrics 
(Attachment 11) Not Part of Application
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• Identify and communicate metric targets at the beginning stage 
of the agreement

• Provide constructive targets for performance of the technology 
or project and how the metric will be measured

• A short description of the metric
• Performance Metrics:
oBenchmark – Current industry standard or status (If 

applicable)
oCurrent – Performance demonstrated to date (If applicable)
oLow Target – Low goal for successful results
oHigh Target – High goal for successful results



How will my Application be Evaluated? 
Application Screening
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Admin Screening Process
1. Energy Commission staff 

screens applications per 
criteria in Section IV.E.

2. Criteria are evaluated on a 
pass/fail basis.

3. Applicants must pass all 
screening criteria, or the 
application will be 
disqualified.

Some Reasons for 
Disqualification

Application is not submitted by 
the specified due date and 
time.

Application does not include 
one or more support letters.

Application contains 
confidential material.



How will my Application be Evaluated? 
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• Evaluation Committee applies the 
scoring scale to the scoring criteria.

• Applications must pass project team 
past performance.

• Applications must obtain a minimum 
passing score of 52.0 points for 
Criteria 1-4 in order to continue 
evaluation.

• Applications must obtain a minimum 
passing score of 70 points for 
Criteria 1-7 in order to be considered 
for funding.

• Review Section IV of the manual and 
ensure the application provides a 
clear and complete response to each 
scoring criteria.

Scoring Criteria Maximum 
Points

Project Team Past Performance Pass/Fail

1. Technical Merit and Need 15

2. Technical Approach 25

3. Impacts and Benefits for CA IOU 
Ratepayers

20

4. Team Qualifications 15

5. Budget and Cost-Effectiveness 10

6. Funds Spent in CA 10

7. Ratio of Direct Labor Costs to 
Loaded Labor Costs

5

Total 100
Minimum Points to Pass 70



How will my Application be Evaluated? 
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• Passing applications (score of 
70 or more from Criteria 1-7) 
will be considered for bonus 
points. Criteria for bonus 
points include:

• Match Funding
• Disadvantaged 

Communities 

Scoring Criteria Maximum 
Points

8. Match 10
9. Disadvantaged or Low-
income Communities 

5

Total Bonus Points 15



Match Funding Points
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• Applicants may receive up to 10 additional preference points 
based on the criteria below:
oUp to 5 points will be awarded based on the ratio of 

proposed Cash contributions divided by CEC grant 
amount requested using the Match Scoring Table in the 
Scoring Criteria.
oThe remaining 5 points may be awarded to applications 

that exceed the minimum match requirements up to 100 
percent using the Exceeds Minimum Match Scoring table.
oRefer to Section IV.F in the Solicitation Manual for more 

details on the match funding scoring criteria.



CalEnviroScreen tool, 
developed by the California 
Environmental Protection 
Agency, will be used to identify 
disadvantaged communities

https://oehha.ca.gov/calenviros
creen/report/calenviroscreen-
30

Identifying Disadvantaged 
Communities
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https://oehha.ca.gov/calenviroscreen/report/calenviroscreen-30


Energy Commission staff 
proposes to use the existing 
low-income mapping tool 
developed by ARB to 
determine AB 523 low-income 
communities

https://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/capa
ndtrade/auctionproceeds/comm
unityinvestments.htm

Identifying Low-Income 
Communities

32

https://www.arb.ca.gov/cc/capandtrade/auctionproceeds/communityinvestments.htm


GFO Submission 
Requirements (Electronic)
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• Preferred method of Delivery is the Energy Commission 
Grant Solicitation System, available at: 
https://gss.energy.ca.gov/

• Electronic files must be in Microsoft Office Word (.doc, 
.docx) and Excel (.xls, .xlsx) formats, unless originally 
provided in solicitation in another format. 

• First-time users must register as a new user to access 
system. 

• Electronic files submitted via e-mail will not be accepted.

https://gss.energy.ca.gov/


GFO Submission 
Requirements (Hard Copy)
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• In order to be consistent with orders and recommendations from 
state and local officials to encourage physical distancing to slow the 
spread of COVID-19, in-person delivery of applications will not be 
allowed.

• Delivery: Due to COVID-19, application hard copies will only be accepted 
via U.S. Mail, Federal Express (FedEx), or United Parcel Service (UPS). 

• Submit Applications with all attachments in the order specified by the due 
date and time listed in Section III of the manual. 

• Application documents should meet formatting requirements, page limits, 
and number of copies specified.

• Provide one hard copy and one electronic copy (CD-ROM or USB stick) 
containing electronic files of the application.

• There is no need to submit a hard copy of an application that is submitted 
through the Grant Solicitation System as it will only cause confusion.



Signature Requirements
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• The CEC waived the requirement for a signature on 
application materials for this solicitation for 
submissions. A notice, regarding CEC’s waiver of the 
signature requirement appears here: 
https://www.energy.ca.gov/funding-
opportunities/solicitations

• The waiver applies to Attachments 1, 10 and 
12. However, all these attachments must be completed, 
where indicated, and included with your application. If 
you are an awardee, the CEC will require wet or 
electronic signatures for these attachments within 30 
days after posting of the Notice of Proposed Award.

https://www.energy.ca.gov/funding-opportunities/solicitations


Next Steps After Grant Award
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• Notice of Proposed Award: Shows total proposed funding 
amounts, rank order of applicants, and the amount of 
proposed award.

• Agreement Development: Proposal documents will be 
processed into a legal agreement.

• Failure to Execute: The Energy Commission reserves the 
right to cancel the pending award if an agreement cannot be 
successfully executed with an applicant. (See Section IV.B)

• Project Start: Recipients may begin work on the project 
only after the agreement is fully executed (approved at an 
Energy Commission business meeting and signed by the 
Recipient and the Energy Commission).



Key Dates
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Activity Date
Solicitation Release 9/9/2020
Pre-Application Workshop 9/22/2020 at 2 p.m
Deadline for Written Questions 9/25/2020 at 5:00 pm
Anticipated Distribution of Questions and Answers Week of 10/12/2020
Deadline to Submit Applications 11/19/2020 at 5:00 pm
Anticipated Notice of Proposed Award Posting 1/5/2021
Anticipated Energy Commission Business Meeting 4/14/2021
Anticipated Agreement Start Date 5/1/2021
Anticipated Agreement End Date 3/31/2025



Additional Questions
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Please send all questions 
related to GFO-19-309 to:

Douglas Harvey
Commission Agreement Officer

1516 Ninth Street, MS-18
Sacramento, CA 95814

Douglas.Harvey@energy.ca.gov

Deadline to submit questions:
Friday, 9/25/2020 5:00 PM

mailto:Douglas.Harvey@energy.ca.gov


Questions and Answers

39

• Please use the raise hand function in Zoom if you’d like to ask your question
o Zoom Phone controls:
 *9 - Raise hand.
 *6 - Toggle mute/unmute.

• You may also use the Q&A function in Zoom to type your question
• We will answer verbal questions first, then will respond to questions in the Q&A 

chat
• Please introduce yourself by stating your name and affiliation.
• Keep questions under 3 minutes to allow time for others.
• Note that our official response will be given in writing and posted on the GFO 

webpage in about two weeks.
• Send written questions to Douglas.Harvey@energy.ca.gov by no later than 

September 25, 2020 5 p.m. PST.

mailto:Douglas.Harvey@energy.ca.gov


Thank You!
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